
Page 1 of 4 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
506 W. St. Charles, Street San Andreas, CA 95249 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: 3:00 PM 
October 11, 2022 

President J.W. Dell ‘Orto 
President of the Board 

Director Richard Blood Director Brady McCartney 
Director Jack Tressler 

AGENDA 

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

a. President J.W. Dell ‘Orto

b. Director Richard Blood

c. Director Brady McCartney

d. Director Jack Tressler

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit: 3 min/person)

At this time, members of the public may address the Board on any matter within its

jurisdiction which is not on the agenda. The public is encouraged to work with staff to

Calaveras Public Utility District hereby provides notice that it will convene its regularly 

scheduled public meetings of the Board of Directors at the District Office. Due to space 

limitations in the Board meeting room and in light of the continuing pandemic, we encourage 

the public to attend remotely as follows: 

• Join the Conference Call meeting
• Dial-in number (US): 1(669)900-9128

• Join the online ZOOM meeting:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81514083058?pwd=UWdBT0FOMHlQRlBzQUNtZnZVcHdE

UT09  
• Meeting ID: 815 1408 3058

• Meeting Passcode code: 075725

Please mute your call before joining. This will limit technical difficulties with audio. 

Only unmute your call if the President has requested public comment on an item. Upon completing 

your comments, please mute your call again. Do not put the call on hold, as hold music can ruin the 

call for all other participants. If that occurs, or in the event of disruptive conduct, staff reserves the 

right to disconnect that caller. Do no talk over the top of any other callers. Conversations must be one 

  



Page 2 of 4 

place items on the agenda for Board consideration. No action can be taken on matters 

not listed on the agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. 

5. RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, RE-RATIFYING THE

PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY THE GOVERNOR ON

MARCH 4, 2020, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC

UTILITY DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 11, 2022 TO NOVEMBER

11, 2022, 2022 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS.

Action Requested: Roll Call Vote

Approval of Resolution No. 2022-28 Declaring and Re-ratifying the State of Emergency

and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of Directors Due to the

Covid-19 Emergency.

6. CONSENT ITEMS

Consent items should be considered together as one motion. Any item(s) requested to be removed

will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Items.

a. June 14, 2022 Meeting Minutes

b. July 12, 2022 Meeting Minutes

c. August 9, 2022 Meeting Minutes

d. August 22, 2022 Meeting Minutes

e. September 13, 2022 Meeting Minutes

f. September 19, 2022 Meeting Minutes

g. Claim Summary August

h. Claim Summary September

Action: Roll call Vote 

Consider motion to approve a-e consent items. 

ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

Board action may occur on any identified agenda item. Any member of the public may 

directly address the Board on any identified agenda item of interest, either before or 

during the Board's consideration of that item. 

7. RESOLUTION 2022-25 ESTABLISHING WATER CONNECTION AND

CAPACITY FEES

Action Requested: Roll Call Vote

a. Public Hearing

b. Approve Resolution 2022-25 Establishing Water Capacity and Connection Fees.



Page 3 of 4 

8. NOTICE OF GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING

Action Requested: Discussion

Designate a Board Member or the General Manager to conduct a vote on proposed

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Association of California Water Agencies. The

person designated will be attending the ACWA General Session Membership Meeting(s)

on Wednesday, November 30, 2022

9. DISTRICT SURPLUS PROPERTY OFFICE FURNITURE

Action Requested: Roll Call Vote

Approval of Resolution 2022-29 Resolution to Dispose of District Surplus Items

10. EL DORADO SAVINGS BANK – AUTHORIZED USERS

Action Requested: Roll Call Vote

a. The signature cards at El Dorado Savings Bank need to be updated. The General

Manager recommends adding the Board President, an additional Board Member, the

General Manager and the Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board as authorized

signatories.

11. FISCAL YEAR ENDING FY 21/22 BUDGET VS. ACTUAL

Action Requested: Discussion & Roll Call Vote

a. The General Manager will review the FY 21/22 Budget vs. Actual expenditures.

b. Approve Budget Amendment to close out FY 21/22

12. YEAR END INVESTMENT SUMMARY

Action Requested: Discussion

a. The General Manager will review the Year End Investment Summary.

13. REPORTS

The purpose of these reports is to provide information on projects, programs, staff

actions, and committee meetings that are of general interest to the Board and public. No

decisions are to be made on these issues.

a. Legal Counsel’s Report

b. Water System Superintendent’s Report

c. Engineer’s Report

d. General Manager’s Report

e. Director’s Comments:  Directors may make brief announcements or brief reports

on their own activities. They may ask questions for clarification, make a referral

to staff or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda.



Page 4 of 4 

14. ADJOURNMENT

If there is no other Board business the President will adjourn to its next regular meeting

scheduled for November 8, at 3:00 p.m.

 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Office at (209) 754-9442. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable 

CPUD to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Any documents that are 
made available to the Board before or at the meeting, not privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure, 

and related to agenda items, will be made available at CPUD for review by the public.



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC 
UTILITY DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, 
RERATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY THE 
GOVERNOR ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 11, 2022 
TO NOVEMBER 11, 2022 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 

WHEREAS, the Calaveras Public Utility District (the “District”) is committed to preserving and 
nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the District’s Board of Directors are open and public, as required by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may 
attend, participate, and watch the District’s Board of Directors conduct their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 
with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 
certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster 
or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 
described in Government Code section 8558; and 

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 2021-10 on 
September 27, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the District’s Board of 
Directors to conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of 
subdivision (b) of section 54953; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the 
Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that exists in the 
District, and the Board of Directors has done so; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency 
that exists in the District and adopted Resolution No. 2022-28 reaffirming the continued state of 



emergency in the District and reauthorizing remote meetings of Board of Directors meetings 
through November 11, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist in the District, specifically, the State of Emergency 
declared by the Governor on March 4, 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, guidance from the State of California, which has been followed by the Calaveras 
County Department of Public Health, recommends or mandates social distancing and face 
coverings in certain settings to prevent the spread of Covid-19; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that that the rise in SARS-CoV-2 Delta 
Variant during the Covid-19 pandemic has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions 
dangerous to the safety of persons within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of 
services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and desires to affirm a local 
emergency exists and re-ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the 
State of California; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors does 
hereby find that the Board of Directors of the District shall continue to conduct its meetings 
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as 
authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall continue to 
comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and 

WHEREAS, the District has implemented virtual meeting protocols which comply with the 
requirements of paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953, by providing for public 
participation through online meeting attendance and the opportunity to provide comment during 
the Board meeting both verbally or via email. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC 
UTILITY DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors hereby considers 
the conditions of the state of emergency in the District and proclaims that a local emergency 
persists throughout the District, and Covid-19 has caused, and will continue to cause, an 
unreasonable risk of harm to the safety of persons within the District that are likely to be beyond 
the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of the District. 

Section 3. Re-ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 
hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, 
effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and Board of Directors are 
hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of 



this Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and public meetings in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 
upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) September 19 2022, or such time 
as the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code 
section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the Board of Directors of the District may 
continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 
54953. 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Calaveras Public Utility District this 
11th day of October, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Signed: _________________________________ 
J.W. Dell’Orto, President of the Board of Directors 

Attest: _________________________________ 
Carissa Bear, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 





































CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

CLAIM SUMMARY #____767____ 

DATE: _August 2022 

The claims listed on the schedules attached to this summary have been 
examined and found to be correct and proper demands against the Calaveras 
Public Utility District. 

Claims Submitted $ 151,814.81 

Payroll Submitted $   53,690.16 

P/R Tax Deposits    $   24,123.38 

Board/Employee Reimb. $  254.80 

Sub-total $ 229,883.15 

Net Additions 

Net Deductions 

Claim Summary 
Approved for 

$ 229,883.15 

__________________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board, Calaveras Public Utility District 



 9:59 AM

 09/08/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 August 2022

Name Date Memo Account Amount

Absolute Office Solutions

08/09/2022 Office Remodel 5475 · Office Supplies 19,874.35

Total Absolute Office Solutions 19,874.35

ACWA-Health

08/09/2022 Dental/Vision/Life - September 2022 5220 · Dental/Vision/Life Insurance 2,605.14

Total ACWA-Health 2,605.14

ACWA/JPIA

08/09/2022 Cyber Liability Program 5425 · Insurance 1,141.55

Total ACWA/JPIA 1,141.55

American Fidelity Assurance

08/09/2022 125 Plan - July 2022 5275 · Employee Section 125 Plan 213.60

08/09/2022 5275 · Employee Section 125 Plan 0.00

Total American Fidelity Assurance 213.60

AT & T

08/09/2022 San Andreas Tank 5480 · Telephone 219.65

08/09/2022 Hydro #3 Garamendi 5480 · Telephone 221.55

08/09/2022 San Andreas Tank Circuit 5480 · Telephone 55.78

Total AT & T 496.98

AT&T

08/16/2022 Shop Internet & Phone 5480 · Telephone 91.08

Total AT&T 91.08

Blood, Richard

08/16/2022 7/21/2022, 7/22/2022, 8/9/2022 Meetings 5310 · Board Meetings-Director Fees 300.00

08/16/2022 5325 · Mileage Reimb, Parking, Tolls 0.00

Total Blood, Richard 300.00

Brady McCartney

08/16/2022 8/9/2022 Meeting 5310 · Board Meetings-Director Fees 100.00

Total Brady McCartney 100.00

Cal-Waste

08/09/2022 Trash Service Office 5760 · Sewer & Garbage 160.94

08/09/2022 Trash Service Shop 5760 · Sewer & Garbage 383.62

Total Cal-Waste 544.56

Calaveras Auto Supply

08/09/2022 Safety Equipment 5566 · Safety Equipment 55.64

Total Calaveras Auto Supply 55.64

Calaveras Lumber Company

 Page 1 of 6



 9:59 AM

 09/08/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 August 2022

Name Date Memo Account Amount

08/09/2022 Office Remodel 5475 · Office Supplies 500.33

Total Calaveras Lumber Company 500.33

Calaveras Public Power Agency

08/09/2022 CPUD Warehouse 5743 · Electricity-Office 114.76

08/09/2022 Glencoe Booster Pump 5740 · Electricity-Pumping 482.27

08/09/2022 CPUD Office 5743 · Electricity-Office 379.25

08/09/2022 Jeff Davis Water Treatment Plant 5742 · Electricity-Treatment 1,110.00

08/09/2022 Licking Fork Pumping Station 5740 · Electricity-Pumping 4.00

Total Calaveras Public Power Agency 2,090.28

Carbon Copy Inc.

08/09/2022 Copies 5464 · Printing 57.66

Total Carbon Copy Inc. 57.66

Care Free Lawns

08/09/2022 July monthly service 5699 · Other Contracted Services 150.00

Total Care Free Lawns 150.00

Cole Tiscornia Construction

08/09/2022 Vac & Excavate @ Jennifer Ct. Boston Yale 5536 · Repairs & Maintenance-T&D 6,020.00

Total Cole Tiscornia Construction 6,020.00

Comcast

08/16/2022 District Office Cable & Internet 5480 · Telephone 301.87

Total Comcast 301.87

Comcast Business (VE)

08/16/2022 District Office Phones - VoiceEdge 5480 · Telephone 293.89

Total Comcast Business (VE) 293.89

Condor Earth Technologies, Inc.

08/16/2022 Redhawk Dam Professional Services 6/24/2022 to 7/23/2022 5695 · Consultants-Dam 1,032.11

Total Condor Earth Technologies, Inc. 1,032.11

CUSI

08/16/2022 Annual Maintenance & Tech Support 10/31/2022 to 10/31/2023 5470 · Software Programs & Updates 2,964.00

Total CUSI 2,964.00

De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc.

08/16/2022 Kyocera Printer 5464 · Printing 83.66

Total De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc. 83.66

Dell'Orto, J.W.

08/16/2022 7/21/2022, 8/9/2022 Meetings 5310 · Board Meetings-Director Fees 200.00

08/16/2022 5325 · Mileage Reimb, Parking, Tolls 0.00

 Page 2 of 6



 9:59 AM

 09/08/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 August 2022

Name Date Memo Account Amount

Total Dell'Orto, J.W. 200.00

DRM Construction

08/16/2022 Deposit Return For Hydrant Meter 1372 · A/R Misc. Charges 2,500.00

Total DRM Construction 2,500.00

Farr Construction

08/09/2022 Clearwell Repair Project Phase II - Progress Pay Estimate #4 5860 · Construction-Capital 47,500.00

Total Farr Construction 47,500.00

Fischer, Merle

08/09/2022 August 2022 Reimbursement 5210 · Medical Benefits-Retiree 765.23

Total Fischer, Merle 765.23

Foothill-Sierra Pest Control Inc.

08/16/2022 Quarterly Pest Control 5670 · Janitorial 125.00

Total Foothill-Sierra Pest Control Inc. 125.00

GEI Consultants, Inc.

08/09/2022 Chief Dam Safety Engineer Services 6/25/2022 - 7/29/2022 5695 · Consultants-Dam 2,932.00

Total GEI Consultants, Inc. 2,932.00

Hill Rivkins Brown & Associates

08/16/2022 Legal Services 5645 · Legal Services 1,357.00

Total Hill Rivkins Brown & Associates 1,357.00

Hobgood's Cleaning Service

08/16/2022 Janitorial Service August 2022 5670 · Janitorial 160.00

Total Hobgood's Cleaning Service 160.00

Hunt & Sons Inc.

08/09/2022 Fuel for Distric Vehicles 5540 · Fuel 1,605.82

Total Hunt & Sons Inc. 1,605.82

Lowe's

08/09/2022 Office Remodel 5475 · Office Supplies 1,183.34

Total Lowe's 1,183.34

Martin Marietta

08/16/2022 Aggregate Inv#36229332 5548 · Materials & Supplies-T&D 403.44

08/16/2022 Aggregate Inv#36278657 5548 · Materials & Supplies-T&D 154.12

08/16/2022 Aggregate Inv#36293204 5548 · Materials & Supplies-T&D 137.34

Total Martin Marietta 694.90

Matrix Trust Company

08/16/2022 Payroll Date 7/31/2022 2317 · 457 Plan 768.96

Total Matrix Trust Company 768.96

 Page 3 of 6



 9:59 AM

 09/08/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 August 2022

Name Date Memo Account Amount

McMaster-Carr

08/09/2022 WTP Materials & Supplies 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 130.26

08/16/2022 Water Treatment Supplies Inv#82469258 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 16.90

08/16/2022 Water Treatment Supplies Inv#82698691 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 236.17

Total McMaster-Carr 383.33

Motherlode Answering Service

08/09/2022 July Service 5606 · Answering Service 390.24

Total Motherlode Answering Service 390.24

Petty Cash

08/16/2022 Petty Cash 1340 · Office Change/Petty Cash 51.43

Total Petty Cash 51.43

PG&E - ENERGY STATEMENT

08/09/2022 Schaad's 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 233.43

08/09/2022 Warehouse Light 5743 · Electricity-Office 9.77

08/09/2022 Warehouse Light 5743 · Electricity-Office 9.77

08/09/2022 San andreas Tank 5743 · Electricity-Office 16.87

08/09/2022 Golden Hills Tank 5743 · Electricity-Office 10.65

08/09/2022 CPUD Office Natural Gas 5743 · Electricity-Office 8.11

08/09/2022 Garamendi Hydro #3 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 243.77

08/16/2022 Hydro #1 Hwy 26 & Ponderosa Way 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 184.85

08/16/2022 Hydro #2 Hwy 26 3 Mi E/Moke Hill 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 92.19

Total PG&E - ENERGY STATEMENT 809.41

PGE-NON ENERGY INVOICES

08/09/2022 Hydro #1 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 7.75

08/09/2022 Hydro #2 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 7.75

08/09/2022 Hydro #3 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 7.75

08/09/2022 Schaad's 5741 · Electricity-Hydros 197.86

Total PGE-NON ENERGY INVOICES 221.11

Pollard Water

08/09/2022 Materials & Supplies 5548 · Materials & Supplies-T&D 96.52

Total Pollard Water 96.52

Postmaster

08/16/2022 Postage for September 5462 · Postage 800.00

Total Postmaster 800.00

Process Solutions, Inc.

08/10/2022 Treatment supplies 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 4,533.15

 Page 4 of 6



 9:59 AM

 09/08/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 August 2022

Name Date Memo Account Amount

Total Process Solutions, Inc. 4,533.15

San Andreas Sanitary District

08/09/2022 Office 5760 · Sewer & Garbage 99.81

08/09/2022 Shop 5760 · Sewer & Garbage 99.81

Total San Andreas Sanitary District 199.62

Sender's Market Inc.

08/09/2022 Office Remodel 5475 · Office Supplies 1,425.35

08/09/2022 Repairs & Maintenance 5534 · Repairs & Maintenance-Pumping 230.12

08/09/2022 Replacement Tools from theft 5585 · Tools 2,710.00

Total Sender's Market Inc. 4,365.47

SEIU Local 1021

08/16/2022 Pay Period Ending 7/31/2022 2322 · SEIU Union 476.14

Total SEIU Local 1021 476.14

Slate Geotechnical Consultants

08/16/2022 Middle Fork Dam Part 12D - Professional Services Through 7/30/2022 5695 · Consultants-Dam 7,206.25

Total Slate Geotechnical Consultants 7,206.25

Staples Credit Plan

08/09/2022 Office Remodel & Supplies 5475 · Office Supplies 1,102.64

08/09/2022 Replacement Ipad for WTP 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 494.87

Total Staples Credit Plan 1,597.51

Treat's General Store

08/09/2022 Office Remodel 5475 · Office Supplies 349.85

08/09/2022 Vehicle Maintenance 5532 · Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 66.47

08/09/2022 Treatment materials & supplies 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 101.24

08/09/2022 T&D materials & supplies 5548 · Materials & Supplies-T&D 81.82

Total Treat's General Store 599.38

Underground Service Alert

08/16/2022 California State Fee for Regulatory Costs (July1, 2022 to June 30, 2023) 5461 · Regulatory Fees 471.46

Total Underground Service Alert 471.46

USA Blue Book

08/09/2022 Pk of 5 delivery tubes & Hatch fee 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 174.70

Total USA Blue Book 174.70

Verizon Wireless

08/09/2022 District Employee Cell Phones 5480 · Telephone 1,069.92

Total Verizon Wireless 1,069.92

Volcano Telephone

 Page 5 of 6



 9:59 AM

 09/08/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 August 2022

Name Date Memo Account Amount

08/09/2022 13900 Highway 26 5480 · Telephone 53.27

08/09/2022 1601 West Forty 5480 · Telephone 53.27

08/09/2022 10727 Ponderosa Way 5480 · Telephone 53.27

08/09/2022 3089 Ridge Rd 5480 · Telephone 49.68

08/09/2022 Treatment Plant 5480 · Telephone 53.27

08/09/2022 Schaad's Hydro 5480 · Telephone 66.67

08/09/2022 Special Circuit 5480 · Telephone 94.19

08/09/2022 Schaad's Hydro 5480 · Telephone 53.27

08/09/2022 Treatment Plant Broadband 5480 · Telephone 56.95

08/09/2022 Treatment Plant Long Distance 5480 · Telephone 0.10

Total Volcano Telephone 533.94

Weber, Ghio & Associates

08/16/2022 Clearwell Tank Project Phase I Construction Management 5850 · Engineering-Capital 114.00

08/16/2022 Clearwell Tank Project Phase II Construction Management 5850 · Engineering-Capital 14,959.63

08/16/2022 Clearwell Tank Project Coating Inspection Service 5850 · Engineering-Capital 8,721.60

Total Weber, Ghio & Associates 23,795.23

Wells Fargo Bank - C. Bear

08/16/2022 Office Supplies 5475 · Office Supplies 2,298.88

08/16/2022 Employee meeting 5290 · Employee Recognition 19.80

08/16/2022 Zoom, QuickBooks, Backblaze, GoDaddy 5470 · Software Programs & Updates 1,248.66

08/16/2022 Truck 007 Jumper Cables 5532 · Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 39.67

08/16/2022 Storage Shed 5710 · Occupancy 200.00

Total Wells Fargo Bank - C. Bear 3,807.01

Wells Fargo Bank - T Small

08/16/2022 Office Remodel 5475 · Office Supplies 92.10

08/16/2022 Union Meeting 5335 · Training 108.88

08/16/2022 QuickBooks Payroll Annual Fee 5470 · Software Programs & Updates 500.00

08/16/2022 Treatment  Supplies 5547 · Materials & Supplies-Treatment 740.53

08/16/2022 Ferc Part 12D Training 5335 · Training 40.75

08/16/2022 Ferc Part 12D Training 5335 · Training 41.78

Total Wells Fargo Bank - T Small 1,524.04

151,814.81

 Page 6 of 6



CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

CLAIM SUMMARY #____768____ 

DATE: _September 2022 

The claims listed on the schedules attached to this summary have been 
examined and found to be correct and proper demands against the Calaveras 
Public Utility District. 

Claims Submitted $ 947,449.16 

Payroll Submitted $   46,887.42 

P/R Tax Deposits    $   21,162.22 

Board/Employee Reimb. $  342.46 

Sub-total $ 1,015,841.26 

Net Additions 

Net Deductions 

Claim Summary 
Approved for 

$ 1,015,841.26 

__________________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board, Calaveras Public Utility District 



 2 58 PM

 10/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 September 2022

Date Date Memo Account Amount

Absolute Office Solutions

09/26/2022 Office Furniture/Remodel 5475  Office Supplies 750 00

Total Absolute Office Solutions 750 00

ACWA-Health

09/02/2022 Dental/Vision/Life October 2022 5220  Dental/Vision/Life Insurance 662.10

Total ACWA-Health 662.10

ACWA/JPIA-WC

09/02/2022 W/C 4/1/2022 - 6/30/2022 5425  Insurance 3,027 63

Total ACWA/JPIA-WC 3,027 63

Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc.

09/02/2022 Lab Fees 5685  Lab & Sampling 890 00

Total Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 890 00

AT & T

09/14/2022 San Andreas Tank 5480  Telephone 221.48

09/14/2022 Hydro #3 Garamendi 5480  Telephone 223 38

09/14/2022 San Andreas Tank Circuit 5480  Telephone 55 81

Total AT & T 500 67

AT &T

09/02/2022 Hydro #3 Garamendi Long Distance 5480  Telephone 68.74

09/26/2022 WTP Long Distance 5480  Telephone 67.77

Total AT &T 136 51

AT&T

09/26/2022 Shop Phone 5480  Telephone 81 09

Total AT&T 81 09

Blood, Richard

09/14/2022 Board Meeting 9/13/2022 5310  Board Meetings-Director Fees 100 00

09/14/2022 5325  Mileage Reimb, Parking, Tolls 0 00

Total Blood, Richard 100 00

Brady McCartney

09/15/2022 Board Meeting 9/13/2022 5310  Board Meetings-Director Fees 100 00

Total Brady McCartney 100 00

Brawner Automotive Repair

09/14/2022 2018 Ford F-150 Service 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 144 27

09/14/2022 2007 Toyota Tacoma A/C 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 185 06

09/14/2022 2009 Toyota Tacoma Service 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 416 88

09/14/2022 2011 Ford F-350 Service 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 1,767 84

Total Brawner Automotive Repair 2,514 05

Cal-Waste

09/15/2022 Office & Shop Monthly Trash Service 5699  Other Contracted Services 544 56

Total Cal-Waste 544 56

Cal PERS

09/09/2022 5200  Medical Benefits 0 00

 Page 1 of 7



 2 58 PM

 10/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 September 2022

Date Date Memo Account Amount

09/09/2022 Employer Contribution, Classic 7/31 - 8/13 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 3,163.43

09/09/2022 Employer Contribution, PEPRA 7/31 - 8/13 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 2,167 61

09/09/2022 Employer Contribution, Classic correction from 3/16/22 - 7/31/22 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 42 65

09/14/2022 Employer Contribution, Classic, 1017, CalPERS, 08/28/2022 - 09/10/2022 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 3,163.43

09/14/2022 Employer Contribution, Classic, 1017, CalPERS, 08/28/2022 - 09/10/2022 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 3,163.43

09/14/2022 Employer Contribution, PEPRA, 26507, CalPERS, 08/28/2022 - 09/10/2022 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 2,167 61

09/14/2022 Employer Contribution, PEPRA, 26507, CalPERS, 08/14/2022 - 08/27/2022 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 2,167 61

09/14/2022 Employer Contribution, PEPRA, 26507, CalPERS,  08/29/2022- 09/24/2022 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 268 58

09/28/2022 October Health Billing 5200  Medical Benefits 28,111 63

09/28/2022 Employer Contribution, Classic, 1017, CalPERS, 09/11/2022 - 09/24/2022 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 3,460 63

09/28/2022 Employer Contribution, PEPRA, 26507, CalPERS, 09/11/2022 - 09/24/2022 5230  Retirement Benefits-CalPERS 2,911 94

Total Cal PERS 50,788 55

Calaveras Auto Supply

09/15/2022 Shop Supplies 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 118.76

Total Calaveras Auto Supply 118.76

Calaveras Enterprise

09/02/2022 Public Notice 5415  Advertising 480 00

09/28/2022 Public Notice 5415  Advertising 336 00

Total Calaveras Enterprise 816 00

Calaveras Lumber Company

09/02/2022 Crack Sealer 5536  Repairs & Maintenance-T&D 45 22

09/29/2022 Replacement equipment due to theft. 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 1,217 56

Total Calaveras Lumber Company 1,262.78

Calaveras Public Power Agency

09/15/2022 CPUD Warehouse 5743  Electricity-Office 113.18

09/15/2022 Glencoe Booster Pump 5741  Electricity-Hydros 704 26

09/15/2022 CPUD Office 5743  Electricity-Office 388 26

09/15/2022 Jeff Davis WTP 5742  Electricity-Treatment 1,470 24

09/15/2022 Licking Fork Pumping Station 5740  Electricity-T & D 4 00

Total Calaveras Public Power Agency 2,679 94

Carbon Copy Inc.

09/02/2022 Copying 5464  Printing 105 31

09/26/2022 Printing 5464  Printing 93 50

Total Carbon Copy Inc. 198 81

Care Free Lawns

09/15/2022 August Monthly Service 5670  Janitorial 150 00

Total Care Free Lawns 150 00

Comcast

09/26/2022 WTP 5480  Telephone 301 87

Total Comcast 301 87

Comcast Business (VE)

09/15/2022 Business Voice Edge Telephone 5480  Telephone 293 89

 Page 2 of 7



 2 58 PM

 10/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 September 2022

Date Date Memo Account Amount

Total Comcast Business (VE) 293 89

Computer Firemen

09/15/2022 Mail Server Troubleshooting 5632  IT & Computer Support 100 00

Total Computer Firemen 100 00

Condor Earth Technologies, Inc.

09/02/2022 Redhawk 5695  Consultants-Dam 1,492 50

Total Condor Earth Technologies, Inc. 1,492 50

Datco Billing

09/02/2022 Tyke Woden Pre-Employment 5665  Pre-Employment 30 00

09/15/2022 Pre Employment Screening (Tyke Woden) 5665  Pre-Employment 30 00

Total Datco Billing 60 00

De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc.

09/26/2022 Kyocera Printer 5464  Printing 83 66

Total De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc. 83 66

Farr Construction

09/02/2022 Clearwell Phase II 5860  Construction-Capital 203,835 81

09/26/2022 Clearwell Tank Phase II 5860  Construction-Capital 448,918.72

Total Farr Construction 652,754 53

Ferguson Enterprises, Inc.

09/26/2022 5555  Meters-Meter Repairs 1,585 57

Total Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. 1,585 57

First Foundation Bank

09/15/2022 Clearwell Tank Loan Principle 5910  Debt Service-Principal 39,566 84

09/15/2022 Clearwell Tank Loan Interest 5920  Debt Service-Interest 26,915 20

Total First Foundation Bank 66,482 04

Fischer, Merle

09/02/2022 September 2022 5210  Medical Benefits-Retiree 765 23

Total Fischer, Merle 765 23

Grainger

09/15/2022 Cam & Groove Gasket 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 47 01

09/26/2022 Safety Equipment 5566  Safety Equipment 403 96

Total Grainger 450 97

Hansford Economic Consulting, LLC

09/15/2022 Connection Fees Study August 2022 5699  Other Contracted Services 2,007 50

Total Hansford Economic Consulting, LLC 2,007 50

Hobgood's Cleaning Service

09/26/2022 Janitorial Services September 2022 5670  Janitorial 160 00

Total Hobgood's Cleaning Service 160 00

Hunt & Sons Inc.

09/02/2022 Compliance Fee & Farm Hose 5540  Fuel 71.73

09/02/2022 Fuel for District Vehicles 5540  Fuel 1,610 00

09/15/2022 Fuel for District Vehicles 5540  Fuel 1,486 66

 Page 3 of 7



 2 58 PM

 10/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 September 2022

Date Date Memo Account Amount

09/15/2022 Hose & Regulatory Fee Truck #007 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 71.73

09/28/2022 Fuel for District Vehicles 5540  Fuel 924.75

Total Hunt & Sons Inc. 4,164 87

Iconix Waterworks

09/15/2022 Clearwell Tank Project 5860  Construction-Capital 21,595 33

Total Iconix Waterworks 21,595 33

Interstate Truck Center

09/02/2022 Dump Truck Repair Kit 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 241 09

09/15/2022  Truck Parts for Repair 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 241 09

Total Interstate Truck Center 482.18

IXOM Watercare, Inc

09/15/2022 Jeff Davis Reservoir Materials 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 3,869 00

Total IXOM Watercare, Inc 3,869 00

Jackson Tire

09/26/2022 Tires for 2011 Ford F350 5532  Repairs & Maintenance-Auto 1,151 52

Total Jackson Tire 1,151 52

Lowe's

09/15/2022 Office Remodel 5475  Office Supplies 199 92

09/15/2022 Water Treatment Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 1,864 69

Total Lowe's 2,064 61

Martin Marietta

09/02/2022 Aggregate 5536  Repairs & Maintenance-T&D 505 06

Total Martin Marietta 505 06

Matrix Trust Company

09/02/2022 Payroll Date 8/13/2022 2317  457 Plan 768 99

09/15/2022 Payroll Date 8/27/2022 2317  457 Plan 726 63

09/15/2022 Payroll Date 9/10/2022 2317  457 Plan 758.44

09/29/2022 Payroll Date 9/24/2022 2317  457 Plan 962 05

Total Matrix Trust Company 3,216.11

McMaster-Carr

09/02/2022 Water Treatment Supplies 5535  Repairs & Maintenance-Treatment 585 55

09/15/2022 WTP Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 61 30

09/26/2022 WTP Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 56 58

Total McMaster-Carr 703.43

Motherlode Answering Service

09/15/2022 Answering Service 5606  Answering Service 271 68

Total Motherlode Answering Service 271 68

Pace Supply

09/02/2022 Shop Supplies 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 5,249 90

09/28/2022 T&D Supplies 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 7,893 06

09/28/2022 T&D Supplies 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 143 32

Total Pace Supply 13,286 28

 Page 4 of 7



 2 58 PM

 10/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 September 2022

Date Date Memo Account Amount

Pat Murphy

09/02/2022 District Office Toilet Repair 5437  Repairs & Maintenance-Office 205 00

Total Pat Murphy 205 00

PG&E - ENERGY STATEMENT

09/02/2022 Schaad's Hydro 5741  Electricity-Hydros 416 21

09/02/2022 Prindle Rd 5740  Electricity-T & D 9 88

09/02/2022 Golden Hills Subdivision 5742  Electricity-Treatment 12 38

09/02/2022 Gold Strike Rd 5740  Electricity-T & D 9.77

09/02/2022 439 Gold Strike Rd 5740  Electricity-T & D 9.77

09/15/2022 Hydro #3 5741  Electricity-Hydros 7.75

09/15/2022 Hydro #2 5741  Electricity-Hydros 7.75

09/15/2022 Hydro #1 5741  Electricity-Hydros 7.75

09/15/2022 Hydro #2 5741  Electricity-Hydros 102 35

09/15/2022 Hydro #1 5741  Electricity-Hydros 224 50

09/15/2022 2600 Andreas Vista 5740  Electricity-T & D 15.72

09/15/2022 506 W Saint Charles 5743  Electricity-Office 8 65

09/26/2022 Hwy 26 & Ponderosa Way 5740  Electricity-T & D 194 51

09/26/2022 Prindle Rd 5740  Electricity-T & D 10 51

09/26/2022 Schaad's 5742  Electricity-Treatment 480 21

Total PG&E - ENERGY STATEMENT 1,517.71

Postmaster

09/21/2022 Postage for October Billing 5462  Postage 800 00

Total Postmaster 800 00

Ramsey Jackson

09/02/2022 Customer Refund for Overpayment 1372  A/R Misc. Charges 73 54

Total Ramsey Jackson 73 54

Rutledge Security Systems, LLC

09/02/2022 Annual Intrusion Alarm Monitoring 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 330 00

Total Rutledge Security Systems, LLC 330 00

San Andreas Sanitary District

09/02/2022 Office 5760  Sewer & Garbage 99 81

09/02/2022 Shop 5760  Sewer & Garbage 99 81

09/29/2022 Office 5760  Sewer & Garbage 99 81

09/29/2022 Shop 5760  Sewer & Garbage 99 81

Total San Andreas Sanitary District 399 24

Secretary of State

09/30/2022 Molly Soulier Notary Class 4495  Notary 40 00

Total Secretary of State 40 00

SEIU Local 1021

09/02/2022 Pay Period Ending 8/15/2022 2322  SEIU Union Dues 432.70

09/15/2022 Pay Period Ending 8/31/2022 2322  SEIU Union Dues 432.70

09/15/2022 Pay Period Ending 9/10/2022 2322  SEIU Union Dues 465 57

09/29/2022 Pay Period ending 9/24/2022 2322  SEIU Union Dues 586.70

 Page 5 of 7



 2 58 PM

 10/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 September 2022

Date Date Memo Account Amount

Total SEIU Local 1021 1,917 67

Sender's Market Inc.

09/15/2022 T&D Materials and Supplies 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 189.76

Total Sender's Market Inc. 189.76

Southwest Valve, LLC

09/02/2022 12" High Performance BFV, Pneumatic Actuator, Mounting Kits and Required adaption 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 7,005.14

Total Southwest Valve, LLC 7,005.14

SPMR, LLC

09/02/2022 Annual License, Support and Data Hosting 10/1/2022 - 9/30/2023 5470  Software Programs & Updates 9,379 92

Total SPMR, LLC 9,379 92

Staples Credit Plan

09/15/2022 Board Room Chairs 5475  Office Supplies 658 20

Total Staples Credit Plan 658 20

SWRCB-DWOCP

09/26/2022 M. Roberts Certification Renewal 5430  License, Cerifications, Fees 105 00

Total SWRCB-DWOCP 105 00

Treat's General Store

09/02/2022 T&D Supplies 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 282 54

09/02/2022 Office Maintenance & Repairs 5437  Repairs & Maintenance-Office 73 92

09/02/2022 Tools 5585  Tools 67.77

09/02/2022 T&D Repairs & Maintenance 5536  Repairs & Maintenance-T&D 35 27

Total Treat's General Store 459 50

Upper Mokelumne River Watershed Authority

09/26/2022 UMRWA Member Agency FY 2023 Assessment 5420  Association Dues 10,128 00

Total Upper Mokelumne River Watershed Authority 10,128 00

USA Blue Book

09/02/2022 Treatment Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 89 04

09/02/2022 Treatment supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 391 32

09/02/2022 Siphon King Utility Pump 5545  Materials & Supplies-Pumping 353 58

09/15/2022 WTP Materials & Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 632.17

09/26/2022 WTP Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 179.10

09/26/2022 WTP Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 153 54

09/26/2022 WTP Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 115 65

09/26/2022 T&D Supplies 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 101.79

09/26/2022 WTP Supplies 5547  Materials & Supplies-Treatment 254 80

Total USA Blue Book 2,270 99

Verizon Wireless

09/02/2022 District Employee Cell Phones 5480  Telephone 1,055 26

09/26/2022 District Employee Cell Phones 5480  Telephone 1,094 22

Total Verizon Wireless 2,149.48

Volcano Telephone

09/02/2022 13900 Highway 26 5480  Telephone 53 27

 Page 6 of 7



 2 58 PM

 10/04/22

 Accrual Basis

 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 September 2022

Date Date Memo Account Amount

09/02/2022 1601 West Forty Rd 5480  Telephone 53 27

09/02/2022 10727 Ponderosa Rd 5480  Telephone 53 27

09/02/2022 3089 Ridge Rd 5480  Telephone 49 68

09/02/2022 Treatment Plant 5480  Telephone 53 27

09/02/2022 Schaad's Hydro 5480  Telephone 66 67

09/02/2022 Special Circuit 5480  Telephone 94.19

09/02/2022 Schaad's Hydro 5480  Telephone 53 27

09/02/2022 Treatment Plant Broadband 5480  Telephone 56 95

Total Volcano Telephone 533 84

Weber, Ghio & Associates

09/26/2022 Clearwell Tank Project - Phase II Construction Management 5860  Construction-Capital 41,524 51

09/26/2022 Coating Inspection Service 5860  Construction-Capital 15,262 80

09/26/2022 Rich Gulch Replacement Project 5860  Construction-Capital 4,395 63

Total Weber, Ghio & Associates 61,182 94

Wells Fargo Bank - C. Bear

09/15/2022 Software Programs & Updates 5470  Software Programs & Updates 222.13

09/15/2022 EAP Training Meeting 5335  Training 218.17

09/15/2022 Postage for Pitney Bowes Machine 5462  Postage 300 00

09/15/2022 Office Supplies 5475  Office Supplies 171 25

Total Wells Fargo Bank - C. Bear 911 55

Wells Fargo Bank - M Roberts

09/15/2022 Safety 5566  Safety Equipment 153 01

09/15/2022 Training 5335  Training 1,104 22

09/15/2022 T&D Supplies 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 55 66

Total Wells Fargo Bank - M Roberts 1,312 89

Wells Fargo Bank - T Small

09/15/2022 Office Remodel - Director's Tables 5830  Buildings 2,099 32

Total Wells Fargo Bank - T Small 2,099 32

Wilbur-Ellis

09/15/2022 Pesticides 5548  Materials & Supplies-T&D 610.19

Total Wilbur-Ellis 610.19

947,449.16

 Page 7 of 7





The following report was prepared by Hansford Economic Consulting LLC. 

The analyses and findings contained within this report are based on primary data provided 
by the Calaveras Public Utility District, as well as additional secondary sources of data 
available as of the date of this report. Updates to information used in this report could 
change or invalidate the findings contained herein. While it is believed that the primary and 
secondary sources of information are accurate, this is not guaranteed.   

Every reasonable effort has been made in order that the data contained in this study reflect 
the most accurate and timely information possible. No responsibility is assumed for 
inaccuracies in reporting by the client, its consultants and representatives, or any other 
data source used in the preparation of this study. No warranty or representation is made 
that any of the projected values or results contained in this study will actually be achieved.  

Changes in economic and social conditions due to events including, but not limited to, 
major recessions, droughts, major environmental problems or disasters that would 
negatively affect operations, expenses and revenues may affect the result of the findings in 
this study. In addition, other factors not considered in the study may influence actual 
results.  



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study --- DRAFT FINAL Page i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION PAGE 

1. Introduction and Summary of Findings 1  
1.1 Introduction 1 
1.2 Authority to Charge Capacity and Connection Fees 1 
1.3 Calculated Capacity and Connection Fees 2 

2. Connection Fees 5 
2.1 Meter Fee Calculation 5 
2.2 Installation Fee Calculation 5 
2.3 Total Calculated Connection Fee 5 

3. Capacity Fees 8 
3.1 Future Development and Growth Assumptions 8 
3.2 Buy-In Fee Costs 9 
3.3 Capacity Fee Calculations 10 
3.4 Regional Fees Comparison 12 

4. Capacity and Connection Fees Adoption and Administration 14 
4.1 Capacity and Connection Fees Adoption 14 
4.2 Future Fee Adjustments and Updates 14 
4.3 Mitigation Fee Act Compliance 14 
4.4 Capacity Fee Credits and Reimbursements 15 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study --- DRAFT FINAL Page ii 

LIST OF TABLES 

TABLE  PAGE 

1 Current New Development Water Fees 1 
2 Proposed New Development Water Fees Schedule 3 
3 Residential Comparison of Current and Proposed Fees 4 
4 Non-Residential Comparison of Current and Proposed Fees 4 
5 Calculated Connection Fees 6 
6 Current Number of ERUs 8 
7 Twenty-year Projection of ERUs 9 
8 Capacity Fee Calculation per ERU 10 
9 Determination of Meter Ratios for Capacity Fee 11 
10 Calculated Capacity Fees 12 

LIST OF FIGURES 

FIGURE  PAGE 

1 Comparison of Regional Water Capacity Fees 13 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 1 

Section 1: INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

1.1 INTRODUCTION 

The Calaveras Public Utility District (CPUD or District) provides water service to residents and 
businesses in the San Andreas, Mokelumne Hill and outlying areas of Calaveras County. The District 
currently serves a population of about 5,000, and provides service to new development as it occurs. 
The purpose of this report is to update the District’s schedule of new development water fees.   

Currently, the District charges new development water fees comprising two components: (1) a 
connection fee, and (2) an installation charge. The fees are mostly based on actual costs incurred, as 
shown in Table 1 below. The current new development fees were set by the Board of Directors 
(Board) in September 1989.  

Table 1 
Current New Development Water Fees 

METER SIZE CONNECTION FEE INSTALLATION CHARGE
[1]

1" or smaller current meter cost + $2,650 $1,250
1.5" & 2" current meter cost + $5,300 cost + 15%
>2" current meter cost + fee determined by Board cost +15% 

Source: CPUD Resolution 89-23. curr

[1] Where any service line requires installation greater than 10 feet from the distribution
line or across/under any road, the installation fee is actual cost plus 15%.

Given that the fees were set more than 30 years ago, it is appropriate to revisit the current schedule 
of new development fees. 

1.2 AUTHORITY TO CHARGE CAPACITY AND CONNECTION FEES 

Under the authority of the Mitigation Fee Act (1987), contained in California Government Code 
Section 66000 et. seq., the District is authorized to collect water capacity and connection fees. 
When a municipality adopts or updates a capacity or connection fee, it must demonstrate that the 
fees shall not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for which the fee is 
imposed. Maximum justifiable fees are calculated in this report pursuant to demonstration of the 
nexus between new development and the increase in demand for the infrastructure that is 
provided to serve the new development.  

Specifically, the District may impose a connection fee pursuant to Government Code Section 66013 
(b)(5) for the physical facilities necessary to make a water connection, including, but not limited to, 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 2 

meters, meter boxes, and pipelines from the structure or project to a water distribution line, that 
does not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of labor and materials for installation of those 
facilities. 

The District may impose a capacity fee pursuant to Government Code Section 66013(b)(3) for public 
facilities in existence at the time a charge is imposed or charges for new public facilities to be 
acquired or constructed in the future that are of proportional benefit to the person or property 
being charged, including supply or capacity contracts for rights or entitlements, real property 
interest, and entitlements and other rights of the local agency involving capital expense relating to 
its use of existing or new public facilities. 

The new development fees should be evaluated at least every five years; over time, inflationary 
adjustments to fees alone may be insufficient as development plans change, anticipated pace of 
development chances, and infrastructure solutions to water service provision (typically in Water 
Master Plans) are revised.  

1.3 CALCULATED CAPACITY AND CONNECTION FEES 

This report updates the District’s current water connection fee, and it calculates a proposed new 
water capacity fee. The connection and capacity fees include these subcomponents: 

Connection Fee Capacity Fee 
Meter Fee Buy-In Fee 
Installation Fee 

For the capacity fee, two fee level options are presented in the report for the Board’s consideration. 

Option 1: The first fee level option calculates the fees based on the replacement cost of the 
District’s water system assets less accumulated depreciation. This option is most 
commonly used for water asset infrastructure because it accounts for the current costs to 
replace existing infrastructure.  

Option 2: The second option calculates the capacity fees based on the original cost of the assets. 
Under the original cost approach, the buy-in fee reflects the original investment in existing 
capacity, paying an amount similar to what the existing customers paid for the capacity 
(or the remaining value of the original investments). Assets that have in theory exceeded 
their useful life may still have a value associated with them that new development would 
pay for a portion of; however, the methodology does not take into account that 
replacement costs of the assets would be greater than when originally installed. A concern 
with this approach is that it is impractical because insufficient capital is raised to ensure 
longevity of the assets. 

Table 2 presents the proposed updated connection fees and the proposed new capacity fees under 
Option 1, which is recommended because it better reflects current costs to replace water system 
facilities. The fees would be charged according the meter size of the new service, with the 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 3 

exception of Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). Pursuant to State law1, ADUs must be charged 
development fees on a per building square foot basis. 

Table 2 
Proposed New Development Water Fees Schedule 

New Development Fee [1] Schedule of Fees [2]

Connection Fee <= 1" 1.5" 2" > 2"
Meter $825 $1,175 $1,675 actual costs
Installation $6,150 $6,150 $6,150 actual costs
Total [3], [4] $6,975 $7,325 $7,825 actual costs

ADU Connection Fee [5] $3.67 Per Livable Bldg. Sq. Ft. [6]

Capacity Fee
1" and Smaller $10,802
1.5" $16,203
2" $23,764
3" $39,966
4" $63,730
6" $123,139
8" $193,350

ADU Capacity Fee [5] $5.69 Per Livable Bldg. Sq. Ft. [6]

Source: HEC July 2022. summ

[1] Both fees proposed under authority of California Government Code 66013.
[2] The fees in this schedule, including the footnotes, will be adjusted every July 1 by the change in the

Engineering News Record San Francisco Constructino Cost Index March to March.
[3] District may waive a portion (meter or installation fee) of the connection fee, circumstance depending.
[4] Additional at-cost fees will be charged when the connection is greater than 10 feet from the main,

and for other extraordinary circumstances requiring additional work. If repaving of a street is
necessary, the minimum fee is $3,010. If the repave requires more than 4 yards of backfill,
a fee of $115 per yard will be charged. If the repave requires more than 200 square feet of asphalt,
the fee will be $10.25 per square foot.

[5] Contrary to footnote [3], no portion of the fee is to be waived for an ADU.
[6] Excludes garage and covered outdoor areas.

Meter Size

As shown in the proposed fee schedule table, it is recommended that the District update the fees 
annually by a predetermined index. The Engineering News Record San Francisco Construction Cost 
Index March to March change is recommended for an annual July 1 update. Periodic review of the 
capacity and connection fees is also recommended whenever estimated costs are revised pursuant 

1 California Assembly Bill 494 and Senate Bill 13. 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 4 

to an update of the Water Master Plan, or whenever there are changes in the County’s General Plan 
that would affect projected growth in the District’s service territory. 

A comparison of current and proposed fees is provided in Table 3 for a new single-family home. 
Currently a new home installing a one-inch water meter would pay a connection fee of $4,650. 
Under the proposed new fees, a new home would pay a connection fee of $6,975 and a capacity fee 
of $10,802. The total fees due would increase from $4,650 to $17,777. 

Table 3 
Residential Comparison of Current and Proposed Fees 

Item Capacity Fee TOTAL
Meter Installation Total Option 1 FEE

Current [1] $3,400 $1,250 $4,650 $0 $4,650

Proposed [2] $825 $6,150 $6,975 $10,802 $17,777

Source: HEC July 2022. 1" sum

[1] Current cost of a 1" meter and appurtenances is $825.
[2] Fees calculated using Option 1, RCNLD asset valuation methodology.

Connection Fee

Assumption: New single family home with a 1" meter

Table 4 compares the development fees due for a new commercial building with a two-inch water 
meter. Under the current fee schedule, the building applicant would pay a connection fee of $6,975 
for the meter plus an installation fee that is actual cost plus 15%. Under the proposed fee schedule 
option one, the applicant would pay a connection fee of $7,825 plus a capacity fee of $23,764, for a 
total fee of $31,589. 

Table 4 
Non-Residential Comparison of Current and Proposed Fees 

Item Capacity Fee TOTAL
Meter Installation Total Option 1 FEE

Current [1] $6,975 actual cost + 15% $0

Proposed [2] $1,675 $6,150 $7,825 $23,764 $31,589

Source: HEC July 2022. non sum

[1] Current cost of a 2" meter and appurtenances is $1,675.
[2] Fees calculated using Option 1, RCNLD asset valuation methodology.

Connection Fee

Assumption: New commercial building with a 2" meter



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 5 

Section 2:  CONNECTION FEES 

Under current California Government Code, connection fees are charges imposed by the District to 
pay for the reasonable cost of providing physical facilities necessary to make a water connection, 
including, but not limited to meters, meter boxes, and pipelines from the structure or project to a 
water distribution line that does not exceed the estimated cost of labor and materials for 
installation of those facilities2. 

The connection fee is made up of two fee components: (1) the meter fee, which covers the 
estimated costs of the meter and meter appurtenances, and (2) the installation fee, which covers 
the estimated costs of labor and equipment to install the facilities. 

2.1 METER FEE CALCULATION 

The meter fee reflects the most current costs of meters and appurtenances for meters one-inch 
(and smaller), 1.5-inch, and 2-inch in size. Meters larger than 2-inch should be charged the actual 
cost of the meter and appurtenances because the costs for these meters are more variable and less 
predictable. There are many options for type of larger meter size (jet, turbine, propeller and so 
forth) and different meter types may be necessary for different building types and building 
locations (including fire protection) needs.  

2.2 INSTALLATION FEE CALCULATION 

The installation fee is based on the estimated amount of staff time (labor cost) and equipment time 
(rental cost) needed to install the meter. Staff time is the average hourly cost of labor at the 
District, including benefits. The District has documented labor and equipment time needed for 
typical installations, which includes connection up to ten feet from the main. Table A-1 in Appendix 
A shows the assumptions used in the calculation to determine the installation cost for a one-inch 
meter. Labor costs are based on a crew of 3 taking two days to install the service and meter. 
Installation costs are assumed to be the same for service sizes two-inches and smaller. Costs are 
less predictable with larger meter sizes; therefore, it is recommended that the actual cost of 
installation be charged for new larger size meter services. 

If a new connection is further than 10 feet from the main, or if any other extraordinary costs are 
incurred, such as a road crossing, actual costs of installation will be charged. In addition, if the 
District is required to dig up the street to tap the main or install the service line, a repave fee will be 
added. The repave fee is based on contractor bids received by the District in July, 2022. Contractor 
minimum quantities are 4 yards of backfill and 200 square feet of asphalt. If quantities greater than 
the minimum are necessary, additional fees will apply per yard of backfill and per square foot of 
asphalt. 

2 Government Code Section 66013(b)(5). 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 6 

2.3 TOTAL CALCULATED CONNECTION FEE 

The total calculated connection fees are shown in Table 5. 

Table 5 
Calculated Connection Fees 

Fee
Component <= 1" 1.5" 2" > 2"

Meter Fee
Meter and Radio $415 $715 $1,165 actual
Meter Appurtenances $410 $460 $510 actual
Total Meter Fee  (rounded) $825 $1,175 $1,675 actual costs

Installation Fee
Labor $3,600 $3,600 $3,600 actual
Equipment $2,550 $2,550 $2,550 actual
Extraordinary Costs 
Repaving
Total Installation Fee (rounded) $6,150 $6,150 $6,150 actual costs

Total Connection Fee $6,975 $7,325 $7,825 actual costs

ADU Connection Fee 
Est. ERU Livable Bldg. Sq. Ft. 1,900 
ADU Fee per Bldg. Sq. Ft. [3] $3.67

Source: CPUD and HEC, July 2022. conn fee

[1] Additional at-cost fee will be charged for extraordinary circumstances such as the connection
being greater than 10 feet from the main, a road crossing, pressure reducer installation, and so forth.

[2] If repaving is necessary, the following minimum charge will be incurred:
County fee $500
Backfill fee $460 If >4 yards, add'l fee of $115 per yard
Asphalt fee $2,050 If > 200 square feet, add'l fee of $10.25 per sq. ft.
Total Minimum fee $3,010

[3] Excludes garage and covered outdoor areas.

Service Size

minimum plus actual cost - if applicable [2]
> 10ft from main and other circumstances actual cost [1]

As already described, the connection fees are calculated for new services with meters 2-inches and 
smaller. For new services requiring larger meters, the District will charge the actual cost of 
installation. Note, the District may charge greater fees than established in the fee schedule for 
meters 2-inches and smaller for extraordinary circumstances (such as a road crossing or a pressure 
reducer installation) and repaving under which greater than typical service installation costs occur. 

The District can charge new ADUs per livable building square foot of the ADU. Attached ADU space 
can only be charged the fee when it is being built as part of a single family home. Detached ADUs 
can be charged whenever they are created.  



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 7 

The calculation of the ADU fee is based on the connection fee of $6,975 for a typical home divided 
by the typical livable building square feet of homes in the CPUD service territory. The typical size of 
a home in the CPUD service territory is 1,900 square feet; this size was determined by pulling local 
real estate data and holding discussions with District staff. Table A-2 in Appendix A lists recently 
sold homes in the area built since 2013. The connection fee for an ADU is $3.67 per livable building 
square foot. 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 8 

Section 3: CAPACITY FEES 

Capacity fees are charged to pay for current and future District facilities that new water customers 
will use. Capacity fees pay for major infrastructure such as water supply and development, 
treatment and distribution facilities. Currently, the District does not charge water capacity fees. The 
proposed capacity fee would pay for buy-in to existing facilities that the new customer will use. 

3.1 FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND GROWTH ASSUMPTIONS 

The first step in determining capacity fees is establishing the current number of water customers, 
expressed in equivalent residential units (ERUs). Using the current number of customers by meter 
size and applying AWWA-standard meter ratios, the current number of ERUs is 2,185 (see Table 6 
below). 

Table 6 
Current Number of ERUs 

Meters
Number 

of Meters
Flow Rate 

(gpm)
Meter 
Ratios 

Number of 
ERUs

1" and Smaller 1,966 50 1.0 1,966
1.5" 14 100 2.0 28
2" 31 160 3.2 99
3" 0 300 6.0 0
4" 6 500 10.0 60
6" 0 1,000 20.0 0
8" 1 1,600 32.0 32
TOTAL 2,018 2,185

Source: AWWA M1 meter flow rates and CPUD number of meters. erus

Based on historical growth patterns in the CPUD service territory, it is estimated that 10 ERUs will 
be added to the customer base each year. Over the next twenty years it is estimated that the 
District will serve an additional 200 ERUs, as shown in Table 7 on the next page. With this level of 
growth, the new ERUs represent 8% of all ERUS by 2040. 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 9 

Table 7 
Twenty-year Projection of ERUs 

Fiscal Year 
Ending # ERUs

Share of
ERUs by 

2040

2020 2,185 92%
2040 2,385
Increase 200 8%

Source: CPUD and HEC 2022. proj

3.2 BUY-IN FEE COSTS 

The cost included in the buy-in fee calculation depends on the methodology that is used to 
determine the value of the District’s current water assets. This report provides two methodologies, 
a replacement cost less depreciation (RCNLD) methodology, and an original cost methodology. Both 
methodologies are described in the American Water Works Association M1 Manual, and both are 
considered to be valid for calculating capacity fees.  

Table A-3 in Appendix A provides a list of the CPUD water assets, their original cost, and estimated 
replacement cost analysis. The first fee level option using the RCNLD methodology calculates the 
fees based on the estimated current replacement cost of the District’s water system assets less 
accumulated depreciation. This option is most commonly used for water asset infrastructure 
because it accounts for the current costs to replace existing infrastructure.  

The second option calculates the capacity fees based on the original cost of the assets. Under this 
option, assets that have in theory exceeded their useful life may still have a value associated with 
them that new development would pay for a portion of; however, it does not take into account that 
replacement costs of the assets would be greater than when originally installed. Under the original 
cost approach, the buy-in fee reflects the original investment in existing capacity, paying an amount 
similar to what the existing customers paid for the capacity (or the remaining value of the original 
investments). A concern with this approach is that it is impractical because insufficient capital is 
raised to ensure longevity of the asset. 

Under both options, the cost of any assets funded with grants is removed, and the cost of land 
(which is not depreciable) is added. In addition, the cost of replacing or rehabilitating and upgrading 
existing assets that is included in the CIP is excluded at the estimated current cost (option 1) or 
original cost (option 2). Total cost included in the buy-in fee is $16.58 million under option 1, and 
$11.91 million under option 2. 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 10 

3.3 CAPACITY FEE CALCULATIONS 

The total buy-in costs are divided by the number of estimated ERUs in 2040 to determine the 
maximum buy-in fee per ERU. An administrative fee of three-percent is added for collection and 
handling of the fees, public hearing costs, and periodic updates of the fee program. 

Under fee level option 1 with the RCNLD methodology, the total capacity fee per ERU is $10,802. 
Under fee level option 2 with the original cost methodology, the total capacity fee per ERU is 
$8,264. The fee calculations are shown in Table 8. 

Table 8 
Capacity Fee Calculation per ERU 

Option 1 Option 2
Item (RCNLD) (Original Cost)

Buy-In Fee
Buy-In of 2021 Assets $20,773,939 $14,898,733
Plus Fiscal Year 2021/22 Improvements $4,100,000 $4,100,000
less grant-funded projects ($10,590) ($12,439)
Plus Land $150,436 $150,436
Net Buy-In Facilities Cost $25,013,786 $19,136,730

Total ERUs by 2040 2,385 2,385 

Total Fee per ERU $10,487 $8,023
Administrative Fee @ 3% $315 $241
Total Water Capacity Fee per ERU $10,802 $8,264

Source: CPUD supporting data and HEC June 2022. exp costs

The fee per ERU is the fee for a one-inch meter because almost all new residential homes will be 
required to install a one-inch meter. The fees for all other meter sizes are based on a) maximum 
flow rates by meter size, and b) estimated installation costs3. 

Maximum flow rates are used because a significant portion of a water system’s design (supply, 
treatment and transmission) is related to meeting capacity needs. The ratio at which the meter 
charge increases is a function of the meter’s safe operating capacity as established by the American 
Water Works Association. For example, a one-inch meter has a maximum flow rate of 50 gallons per 
minute (gpm) and a two-inch meter has a maximum flow rate of 100 gpm. The flow rate of a two-
inch meter is twice that of a one-inch meter therefore the ratio for a two-inch meter is 2.0. Meter 
ratios based on safe operating capacity were previously shown in Table 6. 

3 Regionally, the Tuolumne Utilities District also uses this methodology for capacity fee calculations. 



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 11 

Installation costs are also used because they more closely reflect the new customer’s demand on 
the water system’s distribution facilities, and because for larger meters, the meter capacity may not 
be a reasonable indicator for the actual demand of the customer. The installation cost meter ratios 
are shown in Appendix A Table A-4. Service installation costs, which are an input to the installation 
cost meter ratios, are estimated in Table A-5.  

The meter ratios used to calculate the capacity fee by meter size are an average of the installation 
cost and meter capacity ratios, shown in Table 9 below. 

Table 9 
Determination of Meter Ratios for Capacity Fee 

Meter Size
Installation 

Cost
Meter 

Capacity Average

1" and Smaller 1.0 1.0 1.0
1.5" 1.1 2.0 1.5
2" 1.1 3.2 2.2
3" 1.5 6.0 3.7
4" 1.9 10.0 5.9
6" 2.7 20.0 11.4
8" 3.8 32.0 17.9

Source: CPUD and HEC July 2022. ratios

The calculated capacity fees under each fee level option are shown in Table 10. The calculation of 
the ADU fee is based on the capacity fee for a typical home divided by the typical livable building 
square feet of homes in the CPUD service territory (1,900 square feet).  



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 12 

Table 10 
Calculated Capacity Fees 

Item Option 1 Option 2
(RCNLD) (Original Cost)

Fee per ERU $10,802 $8,264

Est. ERU Livable Bldg. Sq. Ft. 1,900 1,900 
ADU Fee per Bldg. Sq. Ft. [1] $5.69 $4.35

Meter Size
1" and Smaller $10,802 $8,264
1.5" $16,203 $12,396
2" $23,764 $18,180
3" $39,966 $30,576
4" $63,730 $48,756
6" $123,139 $94,207
8" $193,350 $147,922

Source: HEC June 2022. cap calc

[1] Excludes garage and covered outdoor areas.

3.4 REGIONAL FEES COMPARISON

It is common for municipal water providers to charge capacity fees (sometimes also called 
“participation fees”) to equalize the cost of infrastructure between current and future system users. 
Other regional municipal water providers charge capacity fees, as shown in Figure 1 on the next 
page. The proposed capacity fee for a new ERU is less than that charged by the Calaveras County 
Water District and the Amador Water Agency which serve the communities surrounding the CPUD 
service territory. 





Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 14 

Section 4: CAPACITY AND CONNECTION FEES ADOPTION AND 
ADMINISTRATION 

4.1 CAPACITY AND CONNECTION FEES ADOPTION 

Pursuant to California Government Code 66016, prior to increasing an existing fee or adopting a 
new fee, an agency must hold at least one open and public meeting. Notice of the time and place of 
the meeting, including a general explanation of the matter to be considered, and a statement that 
all supporting studies and information are available to the public, shall be noticed at least 10 days 
prior to the meeting. Increases to an existing fee or adoption of a new fee may be made by 
ordinance or resolution.   

4.2 FUTURE FEE ADJUSTMENTS AND UPDATES 

It is recommended that the District update the Capacity and Connection Fees annually by a 
predetermined index. The Engineering News Record San Francisco Construction Cost Index March 
to March change is recommended for an annual July 1 update. Periodic review of the Capacity and 
Connection Fees is also recommended whenever estimated costs are revised pursuant to an update 
of the District’s Water Master Plan, or whenever there are changes in the County’s General Plan 
that would affect projected growth in the District’s service territory. 

4.3 MITIGATION FEE ACT COMPLIANCE 

For the capacity fees only, the District must deposit fee revenues in a separate capital facilities fund 
to avoid any comingling with other monies of the District. Any interest income earned must also be 
deposited into the Water Capacity Fee Fund. In addition, the District must comply with annual and 
five-year reporting requirements for the Water Capacity Fees Fund.  

Within 180 days of the end of a fiscal year, the following is to be furnished for the prior fiscal year: 

1. A description of the charges deposited in the fund,
2. The beginning and ending balance of the fund,
3. The amount of the fees collected and interest earned,
4. An identification of each public improvement for which fees were expended and the

amount of expenditure for each improvement, including the percentage of the total cost of
the improvement that was funded with capacity fees if more than one source of funding
was used,

5. An identification of each public improvement on which charges were expended that were
completed during the fiscal year, and each improvement anticipated to be undertaken in
the following fiscal year, and

6. A description of any interfund transfer or loan made from the Water Capacity Fee Fund,
identification of any public improvements on which any transferred monies are, or will be,
expended, and a description of repayment terms.



Calaveras Public Utility District Water Capacity and Connection Fees Study ---- DRAFT FINAL Page 15 

All of the above information may be included in the District’s annual financial report. 

4.4 CAPACITY FEE CREDITS AND REIMBURSEMENTS

The District may provide fee credits and reimbursements to developers who dedicate land or 
construct facilities included in the expansion fee portion of the capacity fee with private financing. 
The credit / reimbursement may only be up to the cost of the improvement, as included in the 
expansion fee program, or the actual cost paid by the developer, whichever is lower. No credit or 
reimbursement will be allowed for costs incurred that are higher than estimated in the fee 
program, and the administrative portion of the fee is excluded from fee credits / reimbursements. 

Credits. Once fee credits have been determined, they will be used at the time the respective fees 
would be due. The use of accumulated fee revenues shall first be used for District-determined 
priority capital improvement projects, and secondly for repayment of accrued reimbursement to 
private developers.  

Reimbursements. Reimbursements would be due to developers who advance-fund water facilities 
in excess of their fair share of the facility costs. Developers must enter into a reimbursement 
agreement with the District to receive reimbursements. Fee credits would be provided up to the fair 
share cost for the developer, then reimbursements would be due to the developer once revenue 
collections have been made from other developers. Reimbursement priority is a “first in, first out” 
system. As money becomes available, the first in would receive reimbursement first. Developers 
may have to wait some time before their reimbursement is paid in full. Reimbursements are only an 
obligation of the Water Capacity Fee Fund, not any other District fund.  

Fee credits/reimbursements will be adjusted annually by the inflation factor used to adjust the fee. 









Table A‐1

Calaveras Public Utility District Connection Fees Update

Installation Fee Calculations for a One‐Inch Meter DRAFT

Item

Cost per 

Hour

Time 

(Hours) Total Cost

Labor

Crew (3 persons) $75 16.00 $3,600

Total Labor $3,600

Equipment

District Truck $75 10.00 $750

Dump Truck $150 4.00 $600

Backhoe $150 8.00 $1,200

Total Equipment $2,550

Total Installation Fee $6,150

Source: CPUD and HEC July 2022. install fee

Prepared by HEC 200334 model v47/11/2022



Table A‐2 DRAFT
Calaveras Public Utility District Connection Fees Update

Homes Recently Sold or For Sale Built Since 2013

Area Bldg. Sq. Ft.

Mokelumne Hill 1,200

Mokelumne Hill 4,704

Mokelumne Hill 1,205

Mokelumne Hill 1,674

Mokelumne Hill 1,200

Mokelumne Hill 1,330

Mokelumne Hill 2,059

Mokelumne Hill 2,264

Mokelumne Hill 3,172

Mokelumne Hill 2,300

Mokelumne Hill 1,514

Mokelumne Hill 1,200

Mountain Ranch 1,296

Mountain Ranch 1,396

Copperopolis 1,442

Pioneer 1,568

Pine Grove 2,370

Murphys 1,787

Drytown 1,914

Jackson 1,897

Jackson 1,998

Jackson 2,248

Jackson 4,125

Jackson 1,897

Jackson 2,598

San Andreas 1,680

San Andreas 2,786

Median Home Size 1,897

Source: Zillow and Trulia searches, Jan. 7, 2021, sf built

                and July 8, 2022.

Prepared by HEC 200334 model v4 7/11/2022



Table A‐3

Calaveras Public Utility District Connection Fees Update

CPUD Water Assets and Current Values DRAFT

Asset ORIGINAL COST

Description Date Base Years of Years Remaining Original Replacement Replacement Annual Accum. Remaining

Aquired Year Life Deprec. Years Cost Factor Cost Est. Depr. Deprec. Value

2022 3.8% per year

a b c = 2022‐b d = b‐c e f g = e*f h = g/b i = h*c j = g ‐ i

REPLACEMENT COST

BUILDING AND IMPROVEMENT

506 w. Charles Office 06/30/05 2005 30 17 13 $297,320 1.89                  $560,505 $18,683 $317,619 $242,885

New a/c for office 06/30/06 2006 10 16 0 $13,564 1.82                  $24,635 $2,463 $24,635 $0

Office Roof Replacement 06/30/18 2018 30 4 26 $10,250 1.16                  $11,899 $397 $1,587 $10,313

TOTAL BUILDING AND IMPROVEMENT $321,134 $597,038 $21,544 $343,840 $253,198

PUMPING PLANT

Dam 06/30/74 1974 99 48 51 $1,286,710 5.99                  $7,708,211 $77,861 $3,737,314 $3,970,896

Pump Station controls 04/30/04 2004 30 18 12 $13,775 1.96                  $26,955 $899 $16,173 $10,782

Rebuild So. Fork Pump Station Controls 02/29/12 2012 10 10 0 $5,165 1.45                  $7,499 $750 $7,499 $0

Rebuild So. Fork 400 HP GE Solid Shaft Motor 05/31/12 2012 10 10 0 $7,271 1.45                  $10,558 $1,056 $10,558 $0

South Fork Pump Station 06/30/20 2020 40 2 38 $167,810 1.08                  $180,806 $4,520 $9,040 $171,765

TOTAL PUMPING PLANT $1,480,730 $7,934,028 $85,085 $3,780,585 $4,153,444

HYDRO PLANT

Hydro #1 12/31/94 1994 25 28 0 $16,667 2.84                  $47,357 $1,894 $47,357 $0

Hydro #2 12/31/94 1994 25 28 0 $16,667 2.84                  $47,357 $1,894 $47,357 $0

Hydro #3 12/31/94 1994 25 28 0 $16,666 2.84                  $47,354 $1,894 $47,354 $0

80 KW Cummins & GE Zenith Backup Generator (Glencoe) 11/30/11 2011 10 11 0 $38,616 1.51                  $58,202 $5,820 $58,202 $0

Pipeline Hydros ‐ Cla Val 06/30/15 2015 10 7 3 $12,155 1.30                  $15,781 $1,578 $11,047 $4,734

Schaads Dam Access Road 06/30/19 2019 30 3 27 $52,746 1.12                  $58,990 $1,966 $5,899 $53,091

Schaads Underground Irrigation Line 06/30/19 2019 30 3 27 $52,500 1.12                  $58,715 $1,957 $5,872 $52,844

Schaads 06/30/20 2020 30 2 28 $47,139 1.08                  $50,790 $1,693 $3,386 $47,404

Ponderosa Hydro 06/30/20 2020 30 2 28 $17,373 1.08                  $18,718 $624 $1,248 $17,470

TOTAL HYDRO PLANT $270,529 $403,265 $19,321 $227,721 $175,544

TREATMENT PLANT & TANKS

Diversion Dam 06/30/74 1974 99 48 51 $38,505 5.99                  $230,669 $2,330 $111,840 $118,830

Pumping Plant 06/30/74 1974 40 48 0 $166,854 5.99                  $999,562 $24,989 $999,562 $0

Treatment Plant 06/30/74 1974 40 48 0 $500,564 5.99                  $2,998,698 $74,967 $2,998,698 $0

Clearwell Tank 06/30/74 1974 60 48 12 $102,680 5.99                  $615,119 $10,252 $492,095 $123,024

Mokelumne Hill Reservoir 06/30/74 1974 99 48 51 $166,855 5.99                  $999,568 $10,097 $484,639 $514,929

San Andreas Reservoir 06/30/74 1974 99 48 51 $302,833 5.99                  $1,814,162 $18,325 $879,594 $934,569

Pump Station Road 06/30/74 1974 33 48 0 $5,839 5.99                  $34,979 $1,060 $34,979 $0

Mokelumne Hill Road 06/30/74 1974 33 48 0 $5,399 5.99                  $32,343 $980 $32,343 $0

Pump Station B Road 06/30/74 1974 33 48 0 $5,402 5.99                  $32,361 $981 $32,361 $0

Other 06/30/93 1993 33 29 4 $98,115 2.95                  $289,373 $8,769 $254,298 $35,076

Electric Panel with new switch 06/30/00 2000 10 22 0 $10,115 2.27                  $22,977 $2,298 $22,977 $0

Railroad flat water line extention 06/30/02 2002 99 20 79 $1,559,469 2.11                  $3,287,939 $33,212 $664,230 $2,623,709

Treatment plant filters 06/30/05 2005 40 17 23 $286,507 1.89                  $540,119 $13,503 $229,551 $310,569

Treatment plant pump 06/30/05 2005 40 17 23 $46,254 1.89                  $87,197 $2,180 $37,059 $50,138

Backwash Pond Renewal 06/30/14 2014 20 8 12 $168,213 1.35                  $226,694 $11,335 $90,677 $136,016

Treatment Plant Valve Project 06/30/14 2014 20 8 12 $69,302 1.35                  $93,395 $4,670 $37,358 $56,037

Treatment Plant Improvements 06/30/15 2015 20 7 13 $157,435 1.30                  $204,401 $10,220 $71,540 $132,861

Filter Media Replacement 06/30/16 2016 10 6 4 $274,605 1.25                  $343,473 $34,347 $206,084 $137,389

Energy Efficient Lighting Upgrade 06/30/16 2016 40 6 34 $24,574 1.25                  $30,737 $768 $4,611 $26,127

Water Treatment Plant Backwash Valve 06/30/17 2017 10 5 5 $5,985 1.20                  $7,212 $721 $3,606 $3,606

Filter Cla‐Val Replacement 06/30/18 2018 5 4 1 $13,813 1.16                  $16,035 $3,207 $12,828 $3,207

Treatment Plant HVAC/Lighting Upgrade 06/30/18 2018 15 4 11 $12,439 1.16                  $14,440 $963 $3,851 $10,590

Reservoir Diversion Ditch Improvement 06/30/18 2018 3 4 0 $31,040 1.16                  $36,034 $12,011 $36,034 $0

Water Treatment Plant On‐Site Chlorine Generator 06/30/18 2018 20 4 16 $292,154 1.16                  $339,157 $16,958 $67,831 $271,326

Treatment Plant Salt Storage 06/30/19 2019 30 3 27 $75,806 1.12                  $84,780 $2,826 $8,478 $76,302

Treatment Plant Compressor 06/30/20 2020 20 2 18 $7,503 1.08                  $8,085 $404 $808 $7,276

TOTAL TREATMENT PLANTS AND TANKS $4,428,261 $13,389,512 $302,372 $7,817,933 $5,571,579

Prepared by HEC 200334 model v4 7/11/2022



Table A‐3

Calaveras Public Utility District Connection Fees Update

CPUD Water Assets and Current Values DRAFT

Asset ORIGINAL COST

Description Date Base Years of Years Remaining Original Replacement Replacement Annual Accum. Remaining

Aquired Year Life Deprec. Years Cost Factor Cost Est. Depr. Deprec. Value

2022 3.8% per year

a b c = 2022‐b d = b‐c e f g = e*f h = g/b i = h*c j = g ‐ i

REPLACEMENT COST

GENERAL PLANT

Warehouse Construction 06/30/70 1970 40 52 0 $5,573 6.95                  $38,757 $969 $38,757 $0

Dump Truck 06/30/05 2005 15 17 0 $72,627 1.89                  $136,915 $9,128 $136,915 $0

TOTAL GENERAL PLANT $78,200 $175,672 $10,097 $175,672 $0

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

Mokelumne River System 06/30/39 1939 40 83 0 $20,000 22.10                $441,988 $11,050 $441,988 $0

Construction Cost 06/30/40 1940 40 82 0 $257,215 21.29                $5,476,200 $136,905 $5,476,200 $0

Extension Lines 06/30/47 1947 40 75 0 $5,127 16.40                $84,075 $2,102 $84,075 $0

Extension Lines 06/30/48 1948 40 74 0 $8,683 15.80                $137,175 $3,429 $137,175 $0

Extension Lines 06/30/49 1949 40 73 0 $8,091 15.22                $123,143 $3,079 $123,143 $0

San Andreas Line 06/30/52 1952 40 70 0 $104,025 13.61                $1,415,639 $35,391 $1,415,639 $0

Line to cement plant 06/30/53 1953 40 69 0 $9,317 13.11                $122,150 $3,054 $122,150 $0

McCarty Dam Spillway 06/30/54 1954 25 68 0 $25,689 12.63                $324,465 $12,979 $324,465 $0

Highway Realignment 06/30/55 1955 40 67 0 $16,768 12.17                $204,035 $5,101 $204,035 $0

Mainline Extension 06/30/64 1964 40 58 0 $6,164 8.70                  $53,618 $1,340 $53,618 $0

Mainline Extension Reimbursement 06/30/68 1968 40 54 0 $51,073 7.49                  $382,691 $9,567 $382,691 $0

Mainline Extension Garamendi 06/30/72 1972 40 50 0 $7,439 6.45                  $48,016 $1,200 $48,016 $0

Water Lines 06/30/74 1974 75 48 27 $2,725,934 5.99                  $16,330,080 $217,734 $10,451,251 $5,878,829

Water Line ‐ Construction 06/30/76 1976 75 46 29 $9,789 5.56                  $54,427 $726 $33,382 $21,045

Paloma Water Project 06/30/78 1978 75 44 31 $537,378 5.16                  $2,773,087 $36,974 $1,626,877 $1,146,209

Replace Line Material 06/29/83 1983 40 39 1 $5,290 4.28                  $22,654 $566 $22,088 $566

Water Meters 03/01/87 1987 30 35 0 $5,500 3.69                  $20,289 $676 $20,289 $0

Additions 07/01/89 1989 40 33 7 $5,465 3.42                  $18,711 $468 $15,437 $3,274

Additions 07/01/90 1990 40 32 8 $105,339 3.30                  $347,460 $8,687 $277,968 $69,492

Additions 07/01/90 1990 40 32 8 $24,403 3.30                  $80,493 $2,012 $64,394 $16,099

Additions 07/01/90 1990 40 32 8 $851,588 3.30                  $2,808,955 $70,224 $2,247,164 $561,791

Additions 07/01/91 1991 40 31 9 $40,829 3.18                  $129,744 $3,244 $100,551 $29,192

Additions 07/01/92 1992 40 30 10 $138,537 3.06                  $424,118 $10,603 $318,088 $106,029

Additions 06/30/94 1994 40 28 12 $49,630 2.84                  $141,017 $3,525 $98,712 $42,305

Handheld Units, 3 07/31/94 1994 10 28 0 $5,980 2.84                  $16,991 $1,699 $16,991 $0

Backhoe 10/31/94 1994 30 28 2 $57,862 2.84                  $164,407 $5,480 $153,446 $10,960

Extension Lines 12/31/94 1994 40 28 12 $6,493 2.84                  $18,449 $461 $12,914 $5,535

Line Replace Various 01/31/95 1995 10 27 0 $10,000 2.74                  $27,373 $2,737 $27,373 $0

Extension Lines 06/30/95 1995 10 27 0 $15,978 2.74                  $43,737 $4,374 $43,737 $0

MTR 5/8‐3/4 SR DR 10G ‐ Sensus Tech 06/30/96 1996 40 26 14 $7,398 2.64                  $19,509 $488 $12,681 $6,828

Misc‐Camellia, US Pipe, Super Plumbing 06/30/96 1996 10 26 0 $7,225 2.64                  $19,053 $1,905 $19,053 $0

12‐C‐900 CL 150 Pipe ‐ Westburne Supply 06/30/96 1996 40 26 14 $21,983 2.64                  $57,972 $1,449 $37,682 $20,290

Lines Replacement, Various 06/30/97 1997 10 25 0 $74,300 2.54                  $188,766 $18,877 $188,766 $0

Hydroelectric Project 06/30/98 1998 40 24 16 $57,629 2.45                  $141,053 $3,526 $84,632 $56,421

Line Replacement Supplies 06/30/98 1998 30 24 6 $28,845 2.45                  $70,599 $2,353 $56,480 $14,120

Pipe 06/30/98 1998 30 24 6 $6,492 2.45                  $15,890 $530 $12,712 $3,178

Pipelines 06/30/99 1999 10 23 0 $13,065 2.36                  $30,807 $3,081 $30,807 $0

Pickup, Toyota Tacoma 2000 06/30/00 2000 10 22 0 $22,618 2.27                  $51,380 $5,138 $51,380 $0

Lewis Avenue 06/30/00 2000 30 22 8 $52,792 2.27                  $119,925 $3,998 $87,945 $31,980

Air Compressor 06/30/00 2000 10 22 0 $11,895 2.27                  $27,020 $2,702 $27,020 $0

Misc. Pipeline MTGS 06/30/00 2000 10 22 0 $1,877 2.27                  $4,264 $426 $4,264 $0

Welder, Rock Splitter 06/30/00 2000 10 22 0 $8,365 2.27                  $19,002 $1,900 $19,002 $0

Gold Strike Road Replacement 06/30/01 2001 40 21 19 $17,256 2.19                  $37,765 $944 $19,826 $17,938

County Bond reimbursement 09/30/01 2001 40 21 19 ($10,000) 2.19                  ($21,885) ($547) ($11,490) ($10,395)

Prepared by HEC 200334 model v4 7/11/2022



Table A‐3

Calaveras Public Utility District Connection Fees Update

CPUD Water Assets and Current Values DRAFT

Asset ORIGINAL COST

Description Date Base Years of Years Remaining Original Replacement Replacement Annual Accum. Remaining

Aquired Year Life Deprec. Years Cost Factor Cost Est. Depr. Deprec. Value

2022 3.8% per year

a b c = 2022‐b d = b‐c e f g = e*f h = g/b i = h*c j = g ‐ i

REPLACEMENT COST

Valves 06/30/01 2001 10 21 0 $6,595 2.19                  $14,433 $1,443 $14,433 $0

Pipline from CCWD 06/30/01 2001 40 21 19 $23,310 2.19                  $51,014 $1,275 $26,782 $24,232

Pipelines 06/30/01 2001 40 21 19 $25,337 2.19                  $55,450 $1,386 $29,111 $26,339

Pickup truck F3504x4 02/28/02 2002 5 20 0 $30,763 2.11                  $64,861 $12,972 $64,861 $0

Meters 06/30/02 2002 10 20 0 $6,618 2.11                  $13,953 $1,395 $13,953 $0

Whittle pump controls 06/30/03 2003 30 19 11 $14,820 2.03                  $30,102 $1,003 $19,065 $11,037

Winebrenner line extention 06/30/04 2004 30 18 12 $5,708 1.96                  $11,170 $372 $6,702 $4,468

Fence materials 06/30/04 2004 30 18 12 $28,068 1.96                  $54,924 $1,831 $32,955 $21,970

GSH Water system (dev cont) 06/30/05 2005 30 17 13 $91,085 1.89                  $171,712 $5,724 $97,304 $74,409

Simpson road extention 06/30/06 2006 30 16 14 $32,360 1.82                  $58,771 $1,959 $31,345 $27,427

Toyota Tacoma 06/30/07 2007 5 15 0 $28,058 1.75                  $49,092 $9,818 $49,092 $0

Chain link fence‐Jack Davis reservoir 06/30/07 2007 30 15 15 $33,894 1.75                  $59,304 $1,977 $29,652 $29,652

Major pipeline leak repair 06/30/07 2007 30 15 15 $111,545 1.75                  $195,169 $6,506 $97,584 $97,584

Pope & California St. new water line Ph1 06/30/09 2009 30 13 17 $38,740 1.62                  $62,911 $2,097 $27,261 $35,649

2009 Toyota Tacoma 06/30/09 2009 5 13 0 $28,173 1.62                  $45,751 $9,150 $45,751 $0

Paloma pressure station 06/30/09 2009 30 13 17 $5,717 1.62                  $9,283 $309 $4,023 $5,261

Ford Truck 11/23/10 2010 5 12 0 $34,091 1.56                  $53,335 $10,667 $53,335 $0

2009 Trail Max Trailer 10/31/10 2010 5 12 0 $20,533 1.56                  $32,123 $6,425 $32,123 $0

Pope & California St. new water line Ph1 06/30/10 2010 30 12 18 $40,756 1.56                  $63,762 $2,125 $25,505 $38,257

Pope & California St. new water line Ph2 10/31/11 2011 30 11 19 $37,504 1.51                  $56,527 $1,884 $20,726 $35,800

Blastronix Upgrade 11/30/11 2011 5 11 0 $5,145 1.51                  $7,754 $1,551 $7,754 $0

Lafayette Line Replacement 07/31/11 2011 40 11 29 $94,301 1.51                  $142,131 $3,553 $39,086 $103,045

Foothills Terrace Water System 06/30/12 2012 40 10 30 $36,950 1.45                  $53,652 $1,341 $13,413 $40,239

Ridge Road 06/30/13 2013 40 9 31 $93,442 1.40                  $130,713 $3,268 $29,410 $101,303

18" Main 06/30/13 2013 40 9 31 $37,041 1.40                  $51,816 $1,295 $11,659 $40,157

Cemetery Lane 06/30/13 2013 40 9 31 $19,617 1.40                  $27,442 $686 $6,174 $21,267

Mokelumne Hill Tank Fence 06/30/13 2013 8 9 0 $7,316 1.40                  $10,234 $1,279 $10,234 $0

Dozer Retrofit 06/30/13 2013 5 9 0 $21,224 1.40                  $29,690 $5,938 $29,690 $0

Warehouse Paving 06/30/13 2013 10 9 1 $13,350 1.40                  $18,675 $1,867 $16,807 $1,867

506 St. Charles Line Replacement 06/30/13 2013 40 9 31 $20,765 1.40                  $29,048 $726 $6,536 $22,512

Hildebrandt Line Replacement 06/30/14 2014 40 8 32 $69,704 1.35                  $93,938 $2,348 $18,788 $75,150

SCADA System Upgrade (Eurotherm) 06/30/15 2015 10 7 3 $11,485 1.30                  $14,911 $1,491 $10,438 $4,473

SF Pump Station Motor and Flow Meter 06/30/15 2015 10 7 3 $18,204 1.30                  $23,634 $2,363 $16,544 $7,090

Zimmerman & Happy Valley Line Replacement Project 06/30/15 2015 40 7 33 $32,789 1.30                  $42,571 $1,064 $7,450 $35,121

S. Main Line Replacement Project 06/30/16 2016 40 6 34 $205,527 1.25                  $257,071 $6,427 $38,561 $218,511

S. Main (Leger) Moke Hill Line Replacement 06/30/17 2017 40 5 35 $69,415 1.20                  $83,644 $2,091 $10,456 $73,189

Pope/Hildebrandt Fill Station 06/30/17 2017 20 5 15 $45,148 1.20                  $54,403 $2,720 $13,601 $40,802

Railroad Flat Fill Station 06/30/17 2017 20 5 15 $43,726 1.20                  $52,690 $2,634 $13,172 $39,517

Mokulmne Hill Fill Station 06/30/17 2017 20 5 15 $52,941 1.20                  $63,794 $3,190 $15,948 $47,845

2016 Ford F‐350 1FD8X3B6XGED28505 06/30/17 2017 10 5 5 $48,212 1.20                  $58,095 $5,810 $29,048 $29,048

Oak Street Line Replacement 06/30/17 2017 40 5 35 $50,656 1.20                  $61,041 $1,526 $7,630 $53,411

High School Street Line Replacement 06/30/17 2017 40 5 35 $78,489 1.20                  $94,579 $2,364 $11,822 $82,757

Main Control Valve Road Improvements 06/30/17 2017 15 5 10 $31,454 1.20                  $37,902 $2,527 $12,634 $25,268

Marler Line Replacement 06/30/17 2017 40 5 35 $53,471 1.20                  $64,432 $1,611 $8,054 $56,378

Paloma Fill Station 06/30/18 2018 20 4 16 $34,379 1.16                  $39,910 $1,996 $7,982 $31,928

George Reed Fill Station 06/30/18 2018 20 4 16 $34,379 1.16                  $39,910 $1,996 $7,982 $31,928

2018 Ford F‐350 06/30/18 2018 10 4 6 $31,783 1.16                  $36,896 $3,690 $14,758 $22,138

Ponderosa Meter Upgrade 06/30/18 2018 20 4 16 $24,009 1.16                  $27,872 $1,394 $5,574 $22,297

Sunset Line Replacement Project 06/30/18 2018 40 4 36 $402,327 1.16                  $467,055 $11,676 $46,706 $420,350

Pixley Ave Line Replacement Project 06/30/19 2019 40 3 37 $219,096 1.12                  $245,034 $6,126 $18,378 $226,656

Court Line Replacement Project 06/30/19 2019 40 3 37 $16,974 1.12                  $18,984 $475 $1,424 $17,560

FLEXUS F601 Portable Ultrasonic Flowmeter 06/30/19 2019 10 3 7 $11,906 1.12                  $13,316 $1,332 $3,995 $9,321

SCADA System Upgrade 06/30/20 2020 10 2 8 $273,668 1.08                  $294,862 $29,486 $58,972 $235,890

2020 Ford F150 XL (VIN 1FTEX1EP5LKD19366) 06/30/20 2020 5 2 3 $29,985 1.08                  $32,307 $6,461 $12,923 $19,384

TOTAL TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION $8,319,879 $36,889,958 $846,781 $26,269,782 $10,620,175

GRAND TOTAL CPUD ASSETS $14,898,733 $59,389,473 $1,285,201 $38,615,534 $20,773,939

Source  CPUD Depreciation schedule.

[1] Adjusted by the average annual rate of inflation in California since 1955.

Prepared by HEC 200334 model v4 7/11/2022



Table A‐4

Calaveras Public Utility District Connection Fees Update

Installation Cost Meter Ratios DRAFT

Meter Installation Cost

Size Meter Install Total Meter Ratio

[1]

1" and Smaller $825 $6,150 $6,975 1.00

1.5" $1,175 $6,150 $7,325 1.05

2" $1,675 $6,150 $7,825 1.12

3" $2,000 $8,330 $10,330 1.48

4" $4,800 $8,330 $13,130 1.88

6" $8,400 $10,500 $18,900 2.71

8" $13,500 $12,680 $26,180 3.75

Source: HEC 2022. install ratio

[1] Costs for meter smaller than 3" based on CPUD data and costs for

meters 3" and larger based on data from comparison communities.

Estimated Costs by Meter Size

Prepared by HEC 200334 model v47/11/2022



Table A‐5

Calaveras Public Utility District Connection Fees Update

Service Installation Cost Estimates DRAFT

Labor and

Equipment 1 or Smaller 1.5 2 3 4 6 8

LABOR

Hours by Position

Crew 1 16.00 16.00 16.00 20.00 20.00 24.00 28.00

Crew 2 16.00 16.00 16.00 20.00 20.00 24.00 28.00

Crew 3 16.00 16.00 16.00 20.00 20.00 24.00 28.00

Cost by Position

Crew 1 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,500 $1,500 $1,800 $2,100

Crew 2 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,500 $1,500 $1,800 $2,100

Crew 3 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,500 $1,500 $1,800 $2,100

Total Labor $3,600 $3,600 $3,600 $4,500 $4,500 $5,400 $6,300

Equipment

Hours per Equipment Type

District Truck 10.00 10.00 10.00 15.00 15.00 20.00 25.00

Dump Truck 4.00 4.00 4.00 6.00 6.00 8.00 10.00

Backhoe 8.00 8.00 8.00 12.00 12.00 16.00 20.00

Cost by Equipment

District Truck $750 $750 $750 $1,125 $1,125 $1,500 $1,875

Dump Truck $600 $600 $600 $900 $900 $1,200 $1,500

Backhoe $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,800 $1,800 $2,400 $3,000

Total Equipment $2,550 $2,550 $2,550 $3,830 $3,830 $5,100 $6,380

TOTAL $6,150 $6,150 $6,150 $8,330 $8,330 $10,500 $12,680

Source: CPUD and HEC July 2022. all sizes

Meter Size

Prepared by HEC 200334 model v47/11/2022



RESOLUTION 2022-25 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC 

UTILITY DISTRICT ESTABLISHING WATER CONNECTION AND CAPACITY FEES 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Calaveras Public Utility District directed staff to 

conduct an evaluation of the District’s current fees for new connections to District facilities to 

ensure all costs of such additional demand are properly covered and reflected in fees charged by 

the District; and   

WHEREAS, District staff, working with an independent consultant specializing in the 

calculation and allocation of such utility fees, presented a report to the Board proposing new and 

updated capacity and connection fees to cover the reasonable cost of service to the District and 

its ratepayers as a result of new connections and demand on District facilities; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that the adoption of this resolution is in the 

best interests of the District and its ratepayers, and ensures fairness, transparency and compliance 

with applicable state law in the calculation of such capacity and connection fees; and 

WHEREAS, the District introduced and discussed this Resolution 2022-25 at the regular meeting 

of the Board of Directors on August 9, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the District caused to be published a Notice of this resolution in a newspaper of 

general circulation in the District in accordance with Government Code Section 6066 and on the 

District’s website, and held a Public Hearing on September 13, 2022 to consider this Resolution 

2022-25, Establishing Water Connection and Capacity Fees. 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT does hereby establish the following fees: 



The aforementioned fees shall be adjusted for inflation on July 1 of each year based on the Engineering 

News Record San Francisco Construction Cost Index March to March. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution 2022-25 hereby amends, replaces and 

supersedes all prior resolutions and District policies regarding the subject matter hereof. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the 

Board of Directors of the CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT at its Regular Meeting 

on September 13, 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Signed: _________________________________ 

J.W. Dell’Orto, President of the Board of Directors 

Attest: _________________________________ 

Carissa Bear, Secretary/Clerk of the Board 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: ACWA Member Agency Board Presidents and General Managers 
CC: ACWA Board of Director 

FROM: Dave Eggerton, ACWA Executive Director 

DATE: October 5, 2022 

SUBJECT: Notice of General Session Membership Meeting — November 30, 2022 

There will be a General Session Membership Meeting at the ACWA 2022 Fall Conference on Wednesday, 
November 30, 2022, at 12:30 p.m. The meeting will be held in the Crystal Ballroom, Renaissance Esmeralda 
Resort Hotel, Indian Wells. The purpose of the meeting is to conduct a vote by the membership on proposed 
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Association of California Water Agencies as recommended by the Board 
of Directors at its meeting on September 23, 2022. 

Proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws 

As part of ongoing efforts to ensure ACWA’s Bylaws are current and reflect consistency with other governance 
documents and daily operations and to implement changes related to the election of ACWA’s Board Officers, 
the Board of Directors is recommending proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws for consideration by the 
membership. 

Staff worked with Dale Stern, Downey Brand LLP, to prepare the proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws, 
which include the following changes: 

• Amendments to clarify language and to reflect consistency with other governance documents and
daily operations

• Amendments to implement changes to the Board Officers’ election process as recommended by the
Election Task Force

• Amendments to incorporate California Corporations Code provisions allowing meetings to be held by
electronic communication

• Restructuring and reformatting to incorporate a new numbering system

Legal Affairs Committee (LAC) Chair, Jennifer Buckman, appointed LAC member, Doug Coty, to serve as the 
committee’s representative to review the proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws and provide an analysis 
pursuant to ACWA Bylaws (Article 9, Section 8). The proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws reflect the LAC’s 
recommended edits as adopted by the ACWA Board on September 23. 

Via U.S. Mail and Electronic Mail 



ACWA Member Agency Board Presidents and General Managers 
General Session Membership Meeting — November 30, 2022 
October 5, 2022 • Page 2 

Redline and clean versions of the proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws are available on ACWA’s website at 
the link listed below. The materials have also been emailed to member agency general managers and board 
presidents. 

https://www.acwa.com/2022-membership-meeting/ 

Voting Process 

Consistent with ACWA’s Bylaws, Article 9, Section 5: 

• Each member of the Association shall be entitled to one vote that shall be cast by its authorized
representative.

• Voters must be present at the membership meeting to vote.

ACWA will be using a voting system called Live-Tally, which will allow voters to vote using a handheld keypad. 

• Member agencies must indicate their voting representative and alternate on the attached Voter
Designation & Information Form as well as provide all of the information identified on the form in order
for ACWA to facilitate all aspects of the membership meeting and voting processes.

Deadline & Changes 

The deadline for submitting the Voter Designation & Information Form is Wednesday, November 23, 2022. 
While this form identifies both a voting delegate and an alternate voting delegate for the ACWA member 
agency, if for any reason the member agency desires for the alternate voting delegate to vote at the 
membership meeting in place of its designated voting delegate, the member agency must notify ACWA in 
advance of its exchange of voting delegates by contacting the Senior Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn at 
donnap@acwa.com or 916-669-2425 no later than 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, November 29, 2022.  

ACWA General Session Desk 

ACWA staff will be available at the ACWA General Session Desk, located in the Crystal Ballroom Foyer, 
Renaissance Esmeralda Resort Hotel, on Wednesday, November 30, between 9:00 a.m. and 11:45 a.m. to 
answer questions about the membership meeting and voting process. 

Voters need to check in at the ACWA General Session Desk on Wednesday, November 30, between 10:00 
and 11:45 a.m. to pick up handheld keypads. 

If you have any questions regarding the proposed Amended Bylaws and Restated or voting process, 
please contact Senior Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn at 916-669-2425 or donnap@acwa.com. 

dgp 

Attachments: 
1. Voter Designation & Information Form
2. Proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws (redline version) – see website link above
3. Proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws (clean version) – see website link above















































CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-29 

RESOLUTION TO DISPOSE OF DISTRICT SURPLUS ITEMS 

WHEREAS, the Calaveras Public Utility District owns certain items generally described below: 

Item Qntv Make Model Serial Number 

Board Table 1 

WHEREAS, Policy 2200 - Disposal of Surplus Property or Equipment provides guidance on 

the proper disposal of surplus District property and equipment. 

WHERAS, the Board hereby finds that these items have outlived their useful life and are 

surplus and no longer necessary, useful to, or in the best interest of the District to retain ownership of 

said items. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Calaveras Public 

Utility District that: 

The General Manager, or his designee, is hereby authorized to: 

(i) Cause the items to be auctioned "as is," individually or in one or more lots, to the

highest bidder, or

(ii) Transfer to another agency, or

(iii) Discard, recycle, salvage, or scrap any surplus items for which no suitable bids are

received.

The foregoing resolution was duly approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Calaveras Public 

Utility District at a regular meeting on the 11th day of October, 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Signed: _________________________________ 

J.W. Dell’Orto, President of the Board of Directors 

Attest: _________________________________ 

Carissa Bear, Secretary/Clerk of the Board 



September 7, 2022 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: TRAVIS SMALL, GENERAL MANAGER 

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 Budget Review and Budget Amendments 

Summary: 

In January 2022, the Board of Directors adopted the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 District's 

operational budget and capital outlay. When creating a budget, staff uses their best 

judgement to determine the amounts needed in each expenditure category to perform their 

duties. Sometimes these estimates can be higher than actual expenditures and sometimes 

they are lower which leads to a category being underfunded, when this happens, we need to 

adjust category balances through a budget amendment. 

Financial Impact: 

The overall budgeted amount is not increased by budget amendments. Only individual 

categories get impacted. 

Recommendation: 

Budget Amendment to bring in balance the following categories: 

1. Increase the budget to Operating Expenses to $770,890.43

a. The Budget Amendment Spreadsheet shows the breakdown of

increases/decreases to each item located within the Operating Expenses.

2. Decrease the budget to Administration Expenses to $493,269.91

a. The Budget Amendment Spreadsheet shows the breakdown of

increases/decreases to each item located within the Administration Expenses.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Travis Small 

General Manager 























Monthly Maintenance Report

September 2022

LOCATION DESCRIPTION OF WORK STATUS

Jeff Davis WTP Monthly operation and maintenance Complete

Routine water sampling and State reporting, WTP compliance Items Complete

Treated Water =  36,076,613 Gallons Complete

Sold Water =  37,540,618 Gallons Complete

11' Below Spill Ongoing 

Warehouse Shop Routine Operation's Ongoing 

South Fork Pump Station Weekly routine checks Complete

Raw Water Pumped = 0 Acre Feet Ongoing

 0" over Spill- pumps are off Ongoing

Western Hydrologic River Gage Installation Ongoing

Schaads Reservoir Weekly checks Complete

All Units are off Ongoing

Schaads Raw Water Customer = 28,725,85 Gallons Ongoing

7.25' Below Spill Ongoing

Glencoe Pump Station Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

Ponderosa PRV Hydro Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

Generator 10" turbine repair Complete

MCV PRV Hydro Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

Generator 10" turbine repair Complete

Garamendi's PRV Hydro Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

Generator 10" turbine repair Complete

San Andreas Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

4" Steel Main Line Leak (Church Hill) Complete

2" Steel Main Leak (Angels Rd) Complete

Moke Hill Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

Glencoe Distribution Routine operations Complete

Annual Generator Maintenance and Load Testing Complete

Paloma Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

Paloma 6" Main Leak Complete

Paloma ARV Leak Repair Complete

Rail Road Flat Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

Red Hawk Res.  Maintenance Ongoing 

Safety/Training Routine Safety Talks Ongoing

Spray Program Woody Brush/Round-up (WTP Grounds) Fall Schedule Ongoing

Vehicle Maintenance 006 Tires Complete

Other 1 Water Right Curtailed Ongoing

62 USA tags completed Complete

47 Customer service/work orders Complete



Monthly Maintenance Report

September 2022

Monthly meter reading Complete

Complaints-  1- Pressure/ 1 odor Complete

Office Remodel Ongoing

S.A.F.E.R. Grant (Final Review of Feasibility study) Ongoing 




